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Urgent Return Receipt Requested Sign Encrypt Mark Subject Restricted Expand personal&public groups

Fw: Planning Application NO . A/YL-TT/571
20/10/2022 15:16

From: tmylwdpo_pd/PLAND/HKSARG
To: Ophelia Cheuk Man WONG/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND
Cc: Steven Yik Ho SIU/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND, Aaron Ka Long 

LEUNG/PLAND/HKSARG@PLAND

----- Forwarded by tmylwdpo_pd/PLAND/HKSARG on 20/10/2022 15:16 -----

From: <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>
To: <tmylwdpo@pland.gov.hk>
Date: 20/10/2022 14:02
Subject: FW: Planning Application NO . A/YL-TT/571

 
From:
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 12:07 PM
To: tpbpd@pland.gov.hk
Cc: aklleung@pland.gov.hk
Subject: Planning Application NO . A/YL-TT/571
 
DEAR MS WONG & MR LEUNG  
 
 
1. 申請用途為  臨時商店,服務行業(如花店)。
 
2. 營業時間為 星期一至六, 上午10時至下午6時 , 出入車輛大約每小時 2 -3 部 。
 
3. 申請地盤內的西面部份有一條河道, 有關申請發展不會影響河道運作,現附上新的一份佈局設計圖。
 
如有問題, 可聯絡本人/ 趙小姐。 謝謝幫忙!
 
 
此致
江小姐

 佈局設計圖 (20.10.2022).pdf佈局設計圖 (20.10.2022).pdf
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Relevant Extracts of the Town Planning Board Guidelines for  
Designation of “Other Specified Uses” Annotated “Rural Use” (“OU(RU)”) Zone and 

Application for Development within “OU(RU)” Zone under Section 16 of the  
Town Planning Ordinance 

(TPB PG-No. 38) 
 
 

Main Planning Criteria for Assessing Planning Applications 
 
1. Application for development within “OU(RU)” zone would need to demonstrate that the 

proposed development is in line with the planning intention of the zone and will not 
adversely affect the rural environment, the conservation of the rural landscape and the 
maintenance of the rural character of the area and its surroundings and will not 
overstrain the capacity of existing and planned infrastructure such as transport, 
drainage, sewerage and water supply in the area. Each development proposal will 
be assessed on its individual merits, with particular reference to its sustainability in 
ecological, environmental and infrastructural terms.   
 

2. The following are criteria for assessing planning application in “OU(RU)” zone.   
 
Development Intensity 
 

(a) The scale, intensity and built form of the proposed development should be 
compatible with the existing uses in the vicinity of the site, the general setting of the 
surrounding areas and the rural landscape and rural character, and should not adversely 
affect natural landscape.   
 
Location and Land Use Compatibility 
 

(b) Any proposed developments expected to generate substantial traffic or rely on other 
supporting Government, institution or community ( G IC )  facilities in the vicinity, such 
as residential use, should generally be located in areas close to the new towns or major 
roads to take advantage of the existing/planned infrastructure in these areas.  

 
Landscape and Overall Project Design 
 

(c) The design and layout of any proposed development should be compatible and should 
blend in well with the surrounding areas, and the rural landscape and rural character.  
The proposed development should not involve extensive site formation and 
extensive clearance of existing natural vegetation. It should not cause adverse landscape 
or visual impact on the surrounding areas. 
 
Ecology 
 

(d) If a proposed development encroaches onto the boundary of, or is located in the vicinity 
of sites/areas which may have ecological value worthy of conservation or preservation, 
prior consultation with the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department should be 
made. 
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Cultural Heritage 
 

(e) The Antiquities and Monuments Office should be consulted if a proposed development 
encroaches onto the boundary of, or is located in the vicinity of sites/areas having 
possible archaeological/ historical interests worthy of conservation or preservation. 

 
Environment 

 
(f) The proposed development should not cause unacceptable environmental impacts and 

should not be susceptible to adverse environmental effects from pollution sources 
unless adequate mitigating measures are provided.   

 
Transport 

 
(g) Notwithstanding the locational consideration set out in paragraph (b) above, Traffic 

Impact Assessment (TIA) may be required to be carried out to demonstrate that traffic 
volume generated, particularly those from recreational or tourism uses, does not exceed the 
capacity of the local road network, or that proposed mitigation measures such as junction 
improvements are practical and effective. If recreational or tourism uses are proposed, 
impact assessment should be carried out for vehicular traffic and pedestrian flow on local 
road network during weekends and public holidays.  Adequate parking and 
loading/unloading facilities should be provided within the development to meet the traffic 
demands during peak hours. Advice from the Transport Department should be sought 
regarding the traffic implications of the proposed development. 

 
Drainage 

 
(h) Application for planning permission for development should demonstrate that the proposed 

development would not cause adverse drainage impact on the upstream, adjacent and 
downstream areas. In particular, for development within flood-prone areas or 
causing unacceptable increase in the risk of flooding in areas upstream of, adjacent to or 
downstream of the development, planning applications should include a drainage impact 
assessment (DIA) and include necessary flood mitigation measures where appropriate 
to demonstrate that the proposed development would not adversely affect drainage or 
aggravate flooding in the area.   

 
Sewerage 

 
(i) Waste water should be properly collected and disposed of by connecting to public sewers 

leading to Government treatment plants. However, many areas of the rural New 
Territories are not served by public foul sewers. In these circumstances, an 
applicant may need to provide his own sewage treatment facilities to treat the sewage 
to acceptable standards for direct discharge into the receiving waters.  
Alternatively, an applicant may construct new sewer connecting his proposed 
development with Government sewerage facilities subject to the agreement by 
Environmental Protection Department and in consultation with Drainage Services 
Department regarding the connection point. 

 
Water Supply 

 
(j) Water Supplies Department (WSD) should be consulted on whether water supply will be 

available in close proximity to the development sites. If necessary, the applicant may 
be requested to extend his private water mains to the nearest Government water 
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mains for connection and to sort out the land matters associated with the main laying in 
private lots. For developments within the rural areas close to the water gathering 
ground or within the water gathering ground, WSD should be consulted on the potential 
impacts of the proposed developments on the water gathering grounds. 
 
Provision of “Government, Institution or Community” Facilities 
 

(k) The projected demand for GIC facilities and open space arising from the proposed 
development should generally be met by the existing/planned provision in the district. 
Depending on the planning circumstances, the applicant may need to propose measures 
to address the shortfall in order to avoid overstraining the provision of GIC, open space 
and recreational facilities within the same district. For details of the provision of such 
facilities in the district, advice from Planning Department may be sought.  
 
Planning Gain 
 

(l) The applicant will be required to demonstrate that the proposed development will not 
adversely affect the local community and, if applicable, demonstrate that it will bring 
planning gain to the community. 
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Previous Application covering the Site 

 
Rejected Application 
 

  
Application 

No. 
 

 
Proposed Use(s) / Development(s) 

 
Date of Consideration 

(TPB) 
 

 
Rejection 
Reason(s) 

 
1 A/YL-TT/21 Temporary Open Storage of 

Construction Materials for a Period 
of 12 Months 

13.3.1998  
(on review) 

(1), (2), (3) 

 
Rejection Reason(s): 
 
(1) The proposed development is incompatible with the rural character of the area. 
(2) There are two “Open Storage” zones on the draft Tai Tong Outline Zoning Plan No. S/YL-TT/2 

to the immediate east and further south-west of the application site to meet the demand of land 
for open storage uses. 

(3) The approval of the application would set an undesirable precedent for similar applications, the 
cumulative effect of which would degrade the environment of the area.  
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Similar Applications straddling/within the subject “OU(Rural Use)” Zone  
on the Tai Tong OZP 

 
Approved Applications 
 

  
Application No. 

 
Proposed Use(s)/Development(s) 

 
Date of Consideration 

(RNTPC) 
 

1 A/YL-TT/362 Proposed Temporary Shop and Services 
(Grocery Store) for a Period of 3 Years 

6.11.2015 
(revoked on 6.12.2017) 

2 A/YL-TT/400 Proposed Temporary Shop and Services 
(Retail Shop for Pet Food) for a Period of 3 
Years 

28.4.2017 

3 A/YL-TT/408 Proposed Temporary Shop and Services 
(Retail Shop for Pet Food) for a Period of 3 
Years 

11.8.2017 
(revoked on 
11.11.2019) 

4 A/YL-TT/414 Proposed Temporary Shop and Services 
(Grocery Store) for a Period of 3 Years 

8.12.2017 
(revoked on 8.9.2019) 

5 A/YL-TT/466# Temporary Shop and Services (Motor-
vehicle Showroom) with Ancillary Office 
for a Period of 3 Years 

31.5.2019 
(revoked on 
30.10.2021) 

6 A/YL-TT/470 Proposed Temporary Shop and Services 
(Grocery Store) for a Period of 3 Years 

1.11.2019 

7 A/YL-TT/494 Renewal of Planning Approval for 
Temporary Shop and Services (Retail Shop 
for Pet Food) for a Period of 3 Years 

12.6.2020 

8 A/YL-TT/495 Proposed Temporary Shop and Services for 
a Period of 3 Years 

15.5.2020 

9 A/YL-TT/507 
 

Proposed Temporary Shop and Services for 
a Period of 3 Years 

20.11.2020 

10 A/YL-TT/537# Temporary Shop and Services for a Period 
of 3 Years 

28.1.2022 

11 A/YL-TT/561 Proposed Temporary Shop and Services for 
a Period of 3 Years 

26.8.2022 

# Straddling the adjoining “Open Storage” zone 
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Government Departments’ General Comments   

1. Land Administration  

Comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department (DLO/YL, 
LandsD):  

 no adverse comment on the application.  

2. Traffic    

(a) Comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T):  

 no adverse comment on the application; and  

 the local track leading to the application site (the Site) is not under her purview. 

(b) Comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways 
Department (CHE/NTW, HyD): 

 no adverse comment on the application. 

3. Environment  

Comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP):   

 no adverse comment on the application; and 

 no substantiated environmental complaint concerning the Site was received in the past 
three years. 

4. Drainage  

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services Department (CE/MN, 
DSD):  

 no objection in principle to the proposed development from a drainage point of view; 
and 

 should the Town Planning Board (the Board) consider the application acceptable from 
the planning point of view, approval conditions requiring submission, implementation 
and maintenance of a revised drainage proposal for the development to the satisfaction 
of the Director of Drainage Services or of the Board should be stipulated. 

5. Fire Safety  

Comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS):  

 no objection in principle to the proposal subject to fire service installations being 
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provided to his satisfaction. 

6. Building Matters  

Comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department 
(CBS/NTW, BD):  

 no objection to the application. 

7. District Officer’s Comments 

Comments of the District Officer (Yuen Long), Home Affairs Department (DO(YL), 
HAD):  

 his office has not received any comment from the locals.  

8. Other Departments 

The following government departments have no comment on the application: 

 Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development Department (PM(W), 
CEDD) 

 Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department (CE/C, WSD) 
 Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation (DAFC) 
 Commissioner of Police (C of P) 
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Recommended Advisory Clauses 

(a) the planning permission is given to the development/uses under application.  It does not condone 
any other development/use (i.e. open storage of construction materials) which currently exists 
on the application site (the Site) but not covered by the application.  Immediate action should 
be taken to discontinue such development/use not covered by the permission;  

(b) to note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department (DLO/YL, 
LandsD) that: 

(i) the Site comprises Old Schedule Agricultural Lots held under the Block Government 
Lease which contains the restriction that no structures are allowed to be erected without 
the prior approval of the Government; and  

(ii) the lot owner(s) will need to apply to her office to permit the structure(s) to be erected or 
to regularise any irregularities on site, if any.  Besides, given the proposed use is 
temporary in nature, only application for regularisation or erection of temporary 
structure(s) will be considered.  Applications for any of the above will be considered by 
her department acting in the capacity of the landlord or lessor at its sole discretion and 
there is no guarantee that such application(s) will be approved.  If such application(s) is 
approved, it will be subject to such terms and conditions, including among others the 
payment of rent or fee, as may be imposed by her department; 

(c) to note the comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T) that:  

(i) consent of the owners/managing parties of the local track should be obtained for using it 
as the vehicular access to the Site; and 

(ii) sufficient space should be provided within the Site for manoeuvring of vehicles.  No 
parking, queuing and reverse movement of vehicles on public road are allowed; 

(d) to note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways 
Department (CHE/NTW, HyD) that: 

(i) any access road connecting the Site with Tai Shu Ha Road West is not and will not be 
maintained by his office; and 

(ii) adequate drainage measures should be provided to prevent surface water running from the 
Site to the nearby public roads and drains;  

(e) to note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP) that:   

the relevant mitigation measures and requirements in the latest “Code of Practice on Handling 
the Environmental Aspects of Temporary Uses and Open Storage Sites” should be followed to 
minimise any potential environmental nuisances on the surrounding area; 

(f) to note the general comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services 
Department (CE/MN, DSD) and his specific comments on the submitted drainage proposal that:  

(i) hydraulic calculation should be used to demonstrate that the proposed drainage facilities 
are adequate to collect, convey and discharge the surface runoff accrued on the Site and 
the overland flow intercepted from the adjacent lands; 
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(ii) the existing watercourse, to which you propose to discharge stormwater from the Site was 
not maintained by his office.  The owner of the existing drainage facilities should be 
identified and consent from the owner should be obtained prior to commencement of the 
proposed works.  In the case that it is a local village drain, District Office, Yuen Long 
should be consulted; 

(iii) since there is no record of the said existing 225mm U-channel and catchpit, site photos to 
demonstrate its presence and existing condition should be provided; 

(iv) the full alignment of the discharge path from the Site all the way down to the ultimate 
discharge point (e.g. a wall-established stream course/public drainage system) should be 
clearly indicated; 

(v) cross sections showing the existing and proposed ground levels of the Site with respect to 
the adjacent areas should be given; 

(vi) the gradients and the sizes of the proposed/existing U-channels should be shown on the 
drainage plan; 

(vii) the cover levels and invert levels of the proposed U-channels, catchpits/sand traps should 
be shown on the drainage plan;  

(viii) sand trap or provision alike should be provided before the collected runoff is discharged 
to the public drainage facilities;  

(ix) standard details should be provided to indicate the sectional details of the proposed u-
channel and the catchpit/sand trap; 

(x) where walls or hoarding are erected or laid along the site boundary, adequate opening 
should be provided to intercept the existing overland flow passing through the site;  

(xi) the development should neither obstruct overland flow nor adversely affect existing 
natural streams, village drains, ditches and the adjacent areas, etc.; and 

(xii) DLO/YL, LandsD should be consulted and consent from the relevant lot owners should 
be sought for any works to be carried out outside your lot boundary before commencement 
of the drainage works; 

(g) to note the comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS) that: 

(i) in consideration of the design/nature of the proposal, fire service installations (FSIs) are 
anticipated to be required. Relevant layout plans incorporated with the proposed FSIs 
should be submitted to his department for approval; 

(ii) the layout plans should be drawn to scale and depicted with dimensions and nature of 
occupancy, the location of where the proposed FSIs to be installed should also be clearly 
marked on the layout plans; and 

(iii) if the proposed structure(s) is required to comply with the Buildings Ordinance (BO)(Cap. 
123), detailed fire service requirements will be formulated upon receipt of formal 
submission of general building plans; 

(h) to note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings 
Department (CBS/NTW, BD) that: 
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(i) the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street and 
emergency vehicular access in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of the Building 
(Planning) Regulations (B(P)R) respectively; 

(ii) the Site does not abut on a specified street of not less than 4.5m wide and its permitted 
development intensity shall be determined under Regulation 19(3) of the B(P)R at 
building plan submission stage; 

(iii) before any new building works (including containers/open sheds as temporary buildings, 
demolition and land filling, etc.) are to be carried out on the Site, prior approval and 
consent of the Building Authority should be obtained, otherwise they are unauthorised 
building works (UBW) under the BO.  An Authorised Person should be appointed as the 
co-ordinator for the proposed building works in accordance with the BO; 

(iv) for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by the BD to effect 
their removal in accordance with the prevailing enforcement policy against UBW as and 
when necessary.  The granting of any planning approval should not be construed as an 
acceptance of any existing building works or UBW on the Site under the BO;   

(v) any temporary shelters or converted containers for office, storage, washroom or other uses 
considered as temporary buildings are subject to the control of Part VII of the B(P)R; and 

(vi) detailed checking under the BO will be carried out at building plan submission stage. 
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